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)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Furlow Truck Service, LLC (“FTS”) violated 49 CFR § 382.305 by permitting its employee, Russell Meredith, to operate a commercial motor vehicle in interstate commerce on June 7, 2005,
 before FTS had implemented a random alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program.


FTS violated 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) and § 307.400.1
 by permitting its employees, Russell Meredith, on June 7, and Alfred Furlow, on June 28, to operate a commercial motor vehicle in interstate commerce while driving with an expired medical examiner’s certificate.


FTS violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) and § 307.400.1 by permitting its employee, Alfred Furlow, to operate a commercial motor vehicle in interstate commerce on June 15 and 28 without requiring a record of his duty status.


FTS violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a) and § 307.400.1 by permitting its employees, Alfred Furlow and Russell Meredith, to operate commercial motor vehicles in interstate commerce on June 27 without requiring either driver to prepare a driver vehicle inspection report.

Procedure


The Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint on April 11, 2006.  FTS was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing on July 19, 2006.  FTS did not respond to the complaint.  The MHTC filed a motion for summary determination on September 11, 2006.  We gave FTS until September 25, 2006, to respond, but it did not respond.

We may decide this case without a hearing if any party establishes facts that entitle any party to a favorable decision and no party raises a genuine issue as to such facts.
  
We find that the following facts are undisputed.
Findings of Fact
1.
FTS is a limited liability company with a terminal on 4106 Appleberry Lane, 
St. Louis, Missouri, 63121.  The Missouri Secretary of State certified FTS as a limited liability company on September 18, 2002.
2.
At some unspecified time in the past, the company name changed from A V Furlow Truck Service to Furlow Truck Service LLC.  Many of the documents that FTS uses still include the former name for the company.

3.
In 2005, FTS leased, owned, or controlled the following vehicles:

a.
1988 Mack truck tractor, CO# 51, GVWR
 more than 26,000 pounds (“1988 Mack”);

b.
1999 Freightliner truck tractor, CO# 55, GVWR 52,000 pounds (“1999 Freightliner”).
4.
On June 7,
 FTS permitted its employee, Russell Meredith, to haul dirt by driving on public highways from a Target store in St. Louis, Missouri, to Metro Sand in Washington Park, Illinois (“the June 7 trip”).  Meredith drove FTS's 1999 Freightliner.  
5.
Ahrens Contracting, Inc. (“Ahrens Contracting”) had contracted FTS to do the hauling.  Ahrens Contracting paid FTS on June 24.
6.
Meredith made the June 7 trip before FTS had a random alcohol and controlled substances program in place.
7.
Meredith made the June 7 trip after his medical examiner’s certificate had expired on November 27, 2004, and before Meredith was medically examined and certified again.
8.
On June 28, FTS permitted its employee, Alfred Furlow, to haul concrete by driving on public highways from the Chouteau Bridge in St. Louis to Cahokia, Illinois (“the June 28 trip”).  Furlow drove FTS's 1999 Freightliner.  
9.
FTS contracted with Baur Trucking to do the hauling from the Ahrens Contracting job site.  FTS billed for the hauling by invoice dated July 6.
10.
Furlow made the June 28 trip after his medical examiner’s certificate had expired on June 16, 2004, and before he was medically examined and certified again.
11.
FTS did not require Furlow to make a record of duty status for the June 28 trip. 
12.
On June 15, FTS permitted its employee, Alfred Furlow, to haul dirt and trash by driving on public highways from the Grossman job site in St. Louis, Missouri, to Milam in Madison, Illinois (“the June 15 trip”).  Furlow drove FTS's 1988 Mack.
13.
FTS contracted with T. J. Ahrens Excavating, Inc., to do the hauling from the Grossman job site.  T. J. Ahrens Excavating, Inc., paid FTS on June 24.
14.
FTS did not require Furlow to make a record of duty status for the June 15 trip.  
15.
On June 27, FTS permitted its employee, Alfred Furlow, to haul steel by driving on public highways from the Ahrens Contracting job site in Edwardsville, Illinois, to the Grossman job site in St. Louis, Missouri (“the June 27 Ahrens trip”).  Furlow drove FTS’s 1999 Freightliner. 
16.
FTS contracted with Ahrens Contracting to do the hauling.  Ahrens Contracting paid FTS on July 29, 2005.
17.
FTS did not require Furlow to complete a driver vehicle inspection report before he made the June 27 Ahrens trip.
18.
On June 27, FTS permitted its employee, Russell Meredith, to haul dirt and concrete by driving on public highways from the Target job site in St. Louis, Missouri, to the Nooter job site in Green Park, Missouri (“the June 27 Green Park trip”).  Meredith drove FTS’s 1988 Mack.
19.
FTS contracted with Ahrens Contracting to do the hauling.  Ahrens Contracting paid FTS on July 29, 2005.
20.
FTS did not require Meredith to complete a driver vehicle inspection report before he made the June 27 Green Park trip.  
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that FTS has violated the law.
 
Count I – Violation of 49 CFR § 382.305


The MHTC alleges:


11.  On or about June 7, 2005, Respondent violated 49 CFR §382.305 in that it authorized Russell Meredith, Respondent’s employee, to drive a commercial motor vehicle with a gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) of 80,000 pounds in interstate commerce before Respondent had implemented a random alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program.

The MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 382 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  Part 382 of Title 49 CFR establishes the employer’s duty to implement an alcohol or controlled substance testing program while Part 40 sets forth specific procedures and forms to be used in the program.  Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle,” “employer,” and “safety sensitive function” as:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds)[.]

*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

*   *   *

Safety-sensitive function means all time from the time a driver begins to work or is required to be in readiness to work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for performing work. Safety-sensitive functions shall include:
*   *   *
(3) All time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in operation[.]
The MHTC’s exhibits show that FTS comes within the definition of employer; that FTS’s 1999 Freightliner falls within the definition of commercial motor vehicle;
 and that Russell Meredith’s operation of the vehicle falls within the definition of safety-sensitive function.

Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115 provides:

(a) All domestic-domiciled employers must implement the requirements of this part on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations.

Regulation 49 CFR § 382.301 provides:

(a) Prior to the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions for an employer, the driver shall undergo testing for controlled substances as a condition prior to being used, unless the employer uses the exception in paragraph (b) of this section.  No employer shall allow a driver, who the employer intends to hire or use, to perform safety-sensitive functions unless the employer has received a controlled substances test result from the MRO or C/TPA indicating a verified negative test result for that driver.
Furlow does not claim the exception under paragraph (b), and we do not find anything in the record indicating that subsection (b) applies.


Regulation 49 CFR § 382.305 provides:

(a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section.  Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.

These regulations required FTS to implement an alcohol or controlled substances testing program before permitting its employees to drive commercial motor vehicles.  FTS admitted to the MHTC inspector that it had failed to implement such a testing program before it “required or permitted” its employee, Russell Meredith, to operate FTS's 1999 Freightliner on June 7, 2005.
  

The MHTC has shown by clear and satisfactory evidence that FTS violated Regulation 49 CFR § 382.305, as alleged in Count I.
Count II – Violations of 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1)


The MHTC alleges:


13.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §391.45(b)(1) and § 307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized the following employees on the following dates to operate a commercial motor vehicle with a GVWR of 80,000 pounds in interstate commerce while driving on an expired medical examiner’s certificate:



(a)
Russell Meredith – June 7, 2005; and,



(b)
Alfred Furlow—June 28, 2005.

Regulation 49 CFR § 390.3 provides:

(a) The rules in Subchapter B of this chapter are applicable to all employers, employees, and commercial motor vehicles, which transport property or passengers in interstate commerce.
*   *   *
(e) Knowledge of and compliance with the regulations.
(1) Every employer shall be knowledgeable of and comply with all regulations contained in this subchapter which are applicable to that motor carrier’s operations.
(2) Every driver and employee shall be instructed regarding, and shall comply with, all applicable regulations contained in this subchapter.
(3) All motor vehicle equipment and accessories required by this subchapter shall be maintained in compliance with all 
applicable performance and design criteria set forth in this subchapter.
Section 307.400 provides:


1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.

The MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 391 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  In addition, the MHTC requires by regulation, “Commercial motor vehicle and trailers … shall be operated and equipped in compliance with the requirements for drivers and vehicles established in 49 CFR 390-397 and 49 CFR 100-199.”


Regulation 49 CFR § 391.45 provides:

Except as provided in § 391.67, the following persons must be medically examined and certified in accordance with § 391.43 as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle:
*   *   *

(b)(1) Any driver who has not been medically examined and certified as qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle during the preceding 24 months[.]
Regulation 49 CFR § 390.5 provides the following definitions:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater; . . .
*   *   *

Driver means any person who operates any commercial motor vehicle.
*   *   *

Interstate commerce means trade, traffic, or transportation in the United States—

(1) Between a place in a State and a place outside of such State (including a place outside of the United States); . . .

*   *   *

Motor vehicle means any vehicle, machine, tractor, trailer, or semitrailer propelled or drawn by mechanical power and used upon the highways in the transportation of passengers or property, or any combination thereof determined by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration[.]
Furlow does not claim the exception under § 391.67, and we do not find anything in the record indicating that the exception applies.
The MHTC’s exhibits show that FTS’s drivers, Russell Meredith, on June 7, and Alfred Furlow, on June 28, drove the 1999 Freightliner with expired medical examiner certifications.  The 1999 Freightliner was a commercial motor vehicle.  The trips they took qualified as interstate commerce under 49 CFR § 390.5 because they were transporting goods from a place in Missouri to a place in Illinois for money.
The MHTC has shown by clear and satisfactory evidence that FTS twice violated 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1), thereby twice violating § 307.400.1, as alleged in Count II.
Count III – Violations of 49 CFR § 395.8(a)

The MHTC alleges:


15.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §395.8(a) and §307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized Alfred Furlow, Respondent’s employee, to operate a commercial motor vehicle with a GVWR of 80,000 pounds in interstate commerce without requiring a record of his duty status:



(a)
June 15 and 28, 2005.

Regulation 49 CFR § 395.8 provides:
(a) Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraphs (a)(1) or (2) of this section.
Regulation 49 CFR § 390.5 provides:

Driver means any person who operates any commercial motor vehicle.
*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire motor carrier or a private motor carrier.  The term includes a motor carrier's agents, officers and representatives as well as employees responsible for hiring, supervising, training, assigning, or dispatching of drivers and employees concerned with the installation, inspection, and maintenance of motor vehicle equipment and/or accessories.  For purposes of subchapter B, this definition includes the terms employer, and exempt motor carrier.
*   *   *

Other terms--Any other term used in this subchapter is used in its commonly accepted meaning, except where such other term has been defined elsewhere in this subchapter.  In that event, the definition therein given shall apply.
We can find no other definition for “motor carrier” than that given in 42 CFR § 390.5.  The commonly accepted meaning for “carrier” in this context is “an individual or organization engaged in transporting passengers or goods for hire[.]”
  The MHTC’s exhibits show that FTS is a motor carrier because it hauled property for money.  Furlow used the 1988 Mack on his June 15 trip and the 1999 Freightliner on his June 28 trip.  Each is a commercial motor vehicle.  The 
trips on June 15 and June 28 were each from a place in Missouri to a place in Illinois, which qualifies them as being in interstate commerce.  
The MHTC has shown by clear and satisfactory evidence that FTS twice violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a), thereby twice violating § 307.400.1, as alleged in Count III.
Count IV – Violation of 49 CFR § 396.11(a)

The MHTC alleges:


17.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §396.11(a) and §307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized the following employees on the following dates to operate a commercial motor vehicle with a GVWR of 80,000 pounds on the public highways without requiring its driver to prepare a driver vehicle inspection report:


(a)
Alfred Furlow – June 27, 2005; and,


(b)
Russell Meredith – June 27, 2005.

Regulation 49 CFR § 396.11(a) provides:

(a) Report required.  Every motor carrier shall require its drivers to report, and every driver shall prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day’s work on each vehicle operated and the report shall cover at least the following parts and accessories:

--Service brakes including trailer brake connections

--Parking (hand) brake

--Steering mechanism

--Lighting devices and reflectors

--Tires

--Horn

--Windshield wipers

--Rear vision mirrors

--Coupling devices

--Wheels and rims

--Emergency equipment

As under Count III, the exhibits show that FTS is a motor carrier and that Furlow and Russell Meredith were drivers.  They used commercial motor vehicles and made trips from one state to another, which put them in interstate commerce.  The exhibits show that FTS did not require Meredith or Furlow to complete a driver vehicle inspection report before they made their respective trips.

The MHTC has shown by clear and satisfactory evidence that FTS twice violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a), thereby twice violating § 307.400.1, as alleged in Count IV.
Summary


We grant the MHTC’s motion for summary determination on all counts.  We cancel the hearing.
SO ORDERED on October 11, 2006.



________________________________



JUNE STRIEGEL DOUGHTY  


Commissioner

	�Dates refer to 2005, unless otherwise noted.


	�Statutory references are to the 2005 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless otherwise noted.


	�Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3)(B)3.


	�Regulation 49 CFR § 390.5 provides:  “Gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) means the value specified by the manufacturer as the loaded weight of a single motor vehicle.”


	�Paragraphs 9.A and B of the motion for summary determination identify the year of Meredith’s June 7 trip and Furlow’s June 28 trip as 2006.  However, Complaint ¶ 13 and Exs. 2, 4, and 6 identify the year of the trips as 2005.  We conclude that references to 2006 in the motion for summary determination are typographical errors.  We make our findings consistent with the complaint and documentation.  


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  


	�Section 622.350.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.


	�Complaint ¶¶ 11, 13, 15, and 17 allege that the commercial motor vehicles involved had a GVWR of 80,000 pounds, but Ex. 3 shows that the 1999 Freightliner and the 1988 Mack had a GVWR of 56,000 pounds and of more than 26,000, respectively.  Nevertheless, the variance between the complaint and the evidence is not fatal because the GVWR of each truck is within the definition of commercial motor vehicle in 49 CFR §§ 382.107 and 390.5, which require a GVWR of more than 10,000 pounds.


	�Ex. 2.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.


� Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1), as authorized by § 307.400.1.


	�MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 189 (11th ed. 2004).
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